CITY OF SCOTTSBLUFF City of Scottsbluff Council Chambers 2525 Circle Drive, Scottsbluff, NE 69361 LB 840 Citizen Review Committee

Regular Meeting January 2, 2020 12:00 PM

1. Roll Call

2. For public information, a copy of the Nebraska Open Meetings Act is posted in the back of the room on the north wall.

- 3. Notice of changes in the agenda by the Program Administrator (Additions may not be made to this agenda less than 24 hours before the beginning of the meeting unless added under Item 4 of this agenda.)
- 4. Citizens with business not scheduled on the agenda (As required by state law, no matter may be considered under this item unless the committee determines that the matter requires emergency action.)
- 5. Approval of Minutes
 - a) Approval of the minutes for meeting of April 8, 2019
- 6. Action Items
 - a) Review and consider action on Open Door Counseling.
- 7. Review Items
 - a) Review 09/30/19 Spreadsheet.
 - b) Review 06/30/2019 Spreadsheet.
 - c) Review 03/31/2019 Spreadsheet.
- 8. Discussion Items
 - a) Discuss quarterly meeting dates to review loan portfolio.
- 9. Closed Session (to consider any of the above matters, where an Executive Session is appropriate.)
 - a) Following passage of motion to enter into executive session, presiding officer must state purpose of executive session.
- 10. Adjournment.

Item 1

Approval of the minutes for meeting of April 8, 2019

CITY OF SCOTTSBLUFF CITIZENS ADVISORY REVIEW COMMITTEE MINUTES April 8, 2019

The meeting of the City of Scottsbluff Economic Citizens Review Committee was held on April 8, 2019 at 12:00 noon, at City Hall, 2525 Circle Drive, Scottsbluff, Nebraska.

Committee members in attendance were Mark Harris, Diane Vandenberge, Scott Phillips, and Sam Mark. Also in attendance were Nathan Johnson (City Manager/Program Administrator), Adam Hoesing (Deputy City Attorney), and Starr Lehl (City Economic Development Director).

Chairman Harris opened the meeting. It was noted that a copy of the Nebraska Open Meetings Act was located on the south wall of the Council Chamber. There were additions in the agenda or citizens with unscheduled business.

The first order of business was to approve the minutes of the April 12, 2018 meeting. It was moved by member Phillips and seconded by member Mark that the minutes of the April 12, 2018 meeting be approved. Voting yes: Harris, Vandenberge, Phillips and Mark. Voting no: None.

The motion was then made by member Mark and seconded by member Vandenberge to move item 7.b. on the agenda in front of item 6 on the agenda, to address the review and consideration of default on the M R Housing LB 840 EDA Agreement. Voting yes: Harris, Vandenberge, Phillips and Mark. Voting no: None.

Mark Westphal and Amy Westphal were in attendance on behalf of M R Housing and their corporation Millennium Resilient International, Inc. The Westphals stated that the business had ceased operations in November 2018 due to a number of issues. Primarily, the corporation ended its relationship with the original CEO, as there was a difference of opinion in management as to the goals and direction of the corporation. The Westphals also reported that overhead costs and production costs were much higher than they had originally anticipated, and the market for the product of prefabricated housing was not as strong or readily available as they had originally believed. Accordingly, the Westphals reported they made the decision in November 2018 to cease operations and prevent further debt. The Westphals acknowledged debt under the EDA Agreement with the City of Scottsbluff, and responded they were willing to take responsibility for the debt and find a way to repay the loan incurred under the EDA Agreement. The Westphals acknowledged the personal guarantees on the EDA Agreement and the need to repay the loan. The Westphals reported there were other additional debts owed from the operation of the business in order to pay other debts incurred.

City staff reported the Westphals had been current in terms of all interest-only payments under the EDA Agreement, and had earned \$3,600 of job credits during the 2018 calendar year. Accordingly, the principal balance under the EDA Agreement owed by Millennium Resilient International, Inc. and guaranteed by the Westphals at the time of the meeting was \$306,400.00.

The committee and the Westphals then discussed options for repayment. The Westphals indicated they would first seek bank refinancing in order to pay the amount of the EDA Agreement and Note in full, and if unsuccessful in that effort, would request at least two years of a payment schedule in order to repay the Note. It was thereafter moved by Vandenberge and seconded by member Phillips that the following repayment resolution be agreed upon:

The City will consider the EDA Agreement with Millennium Resilient International, Inc. to be in default, and will begin to impose the default interest rate as of April 1, 2019.

The Westphals will seek repayment refinancing in order to pay all of the amounts owed under the EDA Agreement in full on or before July 1, 2019. If the full amount of principal under the EDA Agreement and Note, \$306,400.00, is paid on or before July 1, 2019, the City will agree to charge off and waive any accrued interest on the date of payment. Thereafter, Scottsbluff will consider the Note to be repaid in full.

If repayment in full is not made by July 1, 2019, the City will expect a repayment plan to begin, amortized over 24 equal monthly payments, with the first payment due August 1, 2019, incurring interest at the default interest rate under the Note. The Westphals may prepay the amount owed in full after August 1, 2019, and any accrued interest under the repayment plan since the date of the last payment will be waived by the City if any prepayment should occur.

The City Attorney's office will prepare a repayment agreement to that affect. Voting yes: Harris, Vandenberge, Phillips and Mark. Voting no: None.

The committee members then reviewed program administration reports, with dates ending September 30, 2018, June 30, 2018, and December 31, 2018.

Annual Reports were reviewed and accepted for the following businesses for the periods ending June 30, 2018:

SWBC Webb Orthodontics Jason Webb OD Open Door Counseling

Annual Reports were reviewed and accepted for the following businesses for the periods ending September 30, 2018:

Skiles Industries Dave's Welding Walther Farms Annual Reports were reviewed and accepted for the following businesses for the periods ending December 31, 2018:

Aulick Industries Fusion Ranch EagleMed Regional West Medical Center BDS3C, LLC d/b/a Flyover Brewery (report date subsequently modified) MR Housing

Thereafter, it was moved by member Mark and seconded by member Phillips to approve the job credit report for credits earned as of June 30, 2018, September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2018. Voting yes: Harris, Vandenberge, Phillips and Mark. Voting no: None.

The City Staff then had a discussion with committee members as to several outstanding EDA Agreements under the program. Primarily, the committee discussed the need for information on EDA Agreement with Treaty Site Farms, Inc., the efforts to market and promote the business of Der Topfer, the general progress and structure of the EDA Agreement with Regional West Medical Center, and the rearrangement of payment plans for BDS3C, LLC, Elite Urgent Care and Family Health, LLC, and Pioneer Animal Clinic.

The committee then discussed the possible addition of retail trade to the program's plan, and the application process for the same. It was discussed that the need for more retail in the City of Scottsbluff has arisen, and the committee may be interested in adding retail as a component to its program plan in order to spur growth of more retail opportunities. The committee had previously discussed the concerns and issues that retail presents, primarily with competition for current vendors and the desirability of the jobs created. The committee relayed their continued hesitancy as to including retail into the program plan. Economic Director Starr Lehl reported that a small-business type addition to the plan may be appropriate, under which assistance no greater than \$25,000.00 is available to eligible retail businesses employing no more than 10 full time equivalent positions. This may be seen as an acceptable good middle ground for adding retail to the program plan. No action was taken on item 7.c. regarding the addition of retail.

Member Mark left the meeting at 12:45 p.m. in order to attend another scheduled appointment. A quorum remained thereafter with three members of the committee present.

Economic Director Starr Lehl then requested the committee table the review and consideration of Workforce Housing Guidelines, per the recent adoption and amendment of work force housing to the program plan. Economic Director Starr Lehl was still considering feedback of the City Attorney's office, as well as changes or additions to proposed guidelines for the committee's review. It was urged that the committee review proposed guidelines provided to date, and return with any feed back they may have in order to accurately shape the desires of the committee as to work force housing guidelines. Moved by member Harris and seconded by member Vandenberge to table discussion of Workforce Housing Guidelines. Voting yes: Harris, Vandenberge, and Phillips. Voting no: None.

Moved by member Phillips and seconded by member Vandenberge to approve the report to the City Council as to program progress and functions, as well as Economic Director reports. Voting yes: Phillips, Harris and Vandenberge. Voting no: None.

The committee then discussed presentation of the report to the City Council, whether from City staff or City attorney's office. Economic Development Director Starr Lehl presented and discussed the progress of Croell, Inc., as well as the history of the relationship with Croell and the benefits of the program.

It was thereafter moved by member Vandenberge and seconded by member Phillips to adjourn. Voting yes: Harris, Vandenberge and Phillips. Voting no: None.

The meeting was adjourned at 12:56 p.m.

Nathan Johnson, Program Administrator

Item 1

Review and consider action on Open Door Counseling.

Item 1

Review 09/30/19 Spreadsheet.

Item 2

Review 06/30/2019 Spreadsheet.

Item 3

Review 03/31/2019 Spreadsheet.

Item 1

Discuss quarterly meeting dates to review loan portfolio.

Item 1

Following passage of motion to enter into executive session, presiding officer must state purpose of executive session.

Staff Contact: